
Idaho Falls Redevelopment Agency, August 21, 2014. Page 1 
 

IDAHO FALLS REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

P.O. BOX 50220 

IDAHO FALLS, ID 83405-0220 

August 21, 2014   Regular Meeting Minutes  Council Chambers 

 

Call to Order:  Chair Radford called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. 

Members Present:   Lee Radford, Terri Gazdik, Thomas Halley, Brent Thompson 

Members Absent:  Linda Martin, Lee Staker 

Also Present:  Meghan Conrad, Elam and Burke (via telephone); Renee Magee, Executive Director; 
Thane Sparks, Agency Treasurer; Kristine Staten, Idaho Falls Downtown Development. 

Modifications to Agenda:  There were no changes to the agenda. 

Approval of Minutes:    Thomas Halley moved to approve the minutes of July 17, 2014. Terri 
Gazdik seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously. 

Approval of Bills:   Radford presented the finance report dated August 21, 2014. The following bills 
were presented to be paid from the Snake River Revenue Allocation Fund: Elam and Burke, $372.50 for 
legal services;  Elam and Burke, $1,572.50, and Kushlan and Associates, $3,337.50, for their work on the 
eligibility report on Eagle Ridge Development; and Renaissance Partners, $119,221.60, owner 
participation agreement. The following bills are to be paid from the River Commons Revenue Allocation 
Fund:  Elam and Burke, $74.00 and $888.00, legal services; Ball Ventures, $170,044.88, owner 
participation agreement.  Thomas Halley moved to approve the financial report, Terri Gazdik 
seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.  

Public Hearing for 2014-2015 Budget and Approval of Resolution:  Lee Radford asked Thane Sparks, 
Treasurer, to give a brief overview of the budget tentatively approved by the Board. 

Thayne Sparks explained the notice of the budget of $4,825,900 was published in the paper as required by 
law.  The revenue was calculated using the increment value of the various districts as reported by 
Bonneville County and an approximate levy rate.  The projected revenue was slightly above the previous 
year. To meet the projected construction projects, a portion of the cash reserves will be needed. Some of 
the construction projects budgeted under Fiscal Year 2014-15 are the Greenbelt improvements south of 
Broadway, public improvements by Broadway Ford, and Greenbelt improvements along River Walk 
Drive north of Broadway. There should be sufficient funds budgeted for those expenses. The 
administrative expenses are the same as prior years.  Finally, if the Eagle Ridge urban renewal district is 
created, another revenue allocation fund will have to be established.  There is room in the budget to 
establish the allocation fund without any further adjustments in this proposed budget. 



Idaho Falls Redevelopment Agency, August 21, 2014. Page 2 
 

Terri Gazdik asked Thayne Sparks what are the amounts for notes under the Rive Commons owner 
participation agreement. Sparks explained the notes will total $865,000 with a payment of $170,000 in 
cash. 

Terri Gazdik asked what projects have not been completed in this fiscal year.  Sparks replied the notes 
and payments under the River Commons owner participation agreement, Greenbelt improvements south 
of Broadway, or Broadway Ford may not be completed by the end of this fiscal year so the amounts were 
carried forward. There were no other questions from the Board members for Sparks. 

There were no comments from the public, and, at the request of Lee Radford, Magee confirmed no one 
signed up to testify at the public hearing.  Radford closed the public hearing.  

Terri Gazdik moved to approve the 2015 budget. Brent Thompson second motion.  There was no 
discussion.  Radford called for vote by roll call: Gazdik, yes; Halley, yes; Radford, yes; Thompson, 
yes.  The motion passed 4 to 0.  Radford confirmed there was a quorum present. 

Report on Council Action on Proposed Eagle Ridge Urban Renewal District and Request to Engage 
Services of Kuslan Associates:  Brent Thompson declared he has a conflict of interest and cannot vote 
on issues regarding Eagle Ridge. 

Renee Magee explained Council approved the resolution on August 14, 2014, authorizing the Agency to 
prepare an urban renewal plan for the proposed Eagle Ridge urban renewal district. Renee talked to Phil 
Kuslan and asked him to give me an estimate to prepare the financial portion of the plan as well as the list 
of projects. In the past Harlan Mann prepared this information but he is no longer available.  Phil 
Kuslan’s estimate for his services is $7,000 to 9,000.  He again said his costs may be less as they were for 
the eligibility report.  For the eligibility report, his estimate was $5,000 and his costs were lower.  

Magee further explained, while the plan is being prepared, the Agency will begin to meet with the 
Bonneville County commissioners about an agreement between the Agency and the County, assuming the 
agricultural land owners consent to being in the district. Magee briefly reviewed the process for creating 
an urban renewal district and a time line for the creation and approval of the plan. The goal is to have the 
plan before the City Council at their December 11, 2014, meeting.  The Agency should approve the plan 
on October 16, 2014, and forward it to the planning commission and city council.  If the Eagle Ridge 
District is created, the assessed valuation of the properties within the districts compared to the total 
assessed valuation of the city will be less than 5%. The preparation of the plan will be substantially 
developer financed.  The initial public improvements within the plan are to be developer financed.  The 
time frame for the plan is 20 years.  

Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding Between Agency and Eagle Ridge 
Development, LLC:  Magee said Elam and Burke drafted a Memorandum of Understanding with Eagle 
Ridge Development.  Under the agreement, Eagle Ridge Development will forward to Agency the total 
amount of $20,000, $10,000 to paid by October 1 and $10,000 by December 1.  This amount should cover 
a large amount of the cost of preparing the Plan. The Agency will provide an accounting to Eagle Ridge 
Development.  David Price, managing partner of Eagle Ridge Development, signed the agreement. 

At the request of Radford, Magee outlined the boundaries of the district as proposed in the eligibility 
report.  The proposed district encompasses approximately 53 acres and 21 properties.  



Idaho Falls Redevelopment Agency, August 21, 2014. Page 3 
 

Radford asked what about the proposed public improvements in the plan.  Magee responded the priority is 
a road and utilities connecting Snake River Parkway, South Utah Avenue, and Pioneer Road.  All three 
roads north of Porter Canal need an urban street section, i.e., additional travel lanes, curb and gutter, 
sidewalk, and landscaping.  The utilities will include water, sewer, and possibly electric conduit.  In 
addition to the improvements to be financed by Eagle Ridge Development, Murphys, who are 
constructing Guns and Gear, will be improving South Utah Avenue and have requested assistance.  The 
amount of assistance for Murphys is in the range of $15,000 to $20,000; for Eagle Ridge, the amount was 
originally estimated to be $1.2 million.  The long range plan is to improve Pioneer Road south of Pioneer 
Way.  

Radford stated there are two items to approve: one is the approval of the engagement of Phil Kushlan to 
assist in preparing the urban renewal plan and the second is the approval of the Memorandum of 
Understanding with Eagle Ridge Development. Radford asks for discussion or questions on these issues. 

Terri Gazdik asked if cost of hiring Kuslan will be funded by the developer for Eagle Ridge Subdivision. 
Magee explains it is within the $20,000 in the agreement. Gazdik asked if the funds are advanced from 
one of the districts as a loan and then it is paid back.  Magee answered it not anticipated many bills will 
be coming prior to October 1 when first $10,000 is to be paid. Sparks stated some bills already received 
from Elam and Burke were for the new district and were paid out of Snake River Allocation Fund. 
Radford explained the Agency already paid $3,300 to Phil Kuslan for preparation of eligibility report.  

Brent Thompson asked if there is some ceiling for districts on assessed value. Magee responded the  
statutory limitation is ten percent of a city’s total assessed value. Meghan Conrad agreed with Magee.  

Radford explained Idaho Falls is well below the limit and always has been. The largest urban renewal 
district will terminate on December 31, 2018, which will drop the percentage further.  

Thomas Halley moved to authorize engaging the services of Phil Kushlan to assist with the 
preparation of  the urban renewal plan for the Eagle Ridge district and to approve the 
Memorandum of Understanding with Eagle Ridge Development and Terri Gazdik second motion. 
Radford asked for a roll call vote:  Gazdik, yes; Hally, yes; Radford, yes; Thompson, abstain.  The 
item passed unanimously. 

Authorization to Prepare Promissory Notes, Snake River Landing, Divisions No. 6 and 7, and 
Committee to Negotiate Interest Rate: 

Magee explained the interest rate was not resolved on future notes for Snake River Landing and Thomas 
Development. The amended owner participation agreement (OPA) states a range for an interest rate: 
4.25% to 6.5%.  Magee requested a small committee to meet with Ball Ventures and Thomas 
Development to decide the interest rate. Terri Gazdik volunteered to help.   

Radford explained the receipt of interest is contingent on the receipt of revenues. The amount received is 
dependent on the amount, type, and timing of development.  As seen with Renaissance Partners, the 
development may only generate repayment of principal. But the interest rate is important to developers 
and they like to get a good number.  The Agency has not reached a good resolution on the matter and does 
want to compensate the developers for their financing the improvements.  It is better for the Agency than 
bonding or an Agency loan from a bank. 



Idaho Falls Redevelopment Agency, August 21, 2014. Page 4 
 

Thompson questioned if there is a constant index to which these rates can be tied so the Agency does not 
have to negotiate every time.   He wants a policy to tie the interest rate to some index.  

Conrad will talk to Ryan Armbruster, will look to see what other agencies have adopted with regard to 
interest rates, and get back to Renee Magee. 

Brent Thompson moved to authorize preparation of promissory notes with Ball Ventures and 
Thomas Development by Elam and Burke, Terri Gazdik seconded motion, and it passed 
unanimously. 

Authorization to Prepare Agreement with City of Idaho Falls for Improvements on Westbank of 
Snake River: Magee explained Greg Weitzel, Parks and Recreation Division, requested an agreement for 
the $400,000 Agency commitment to improvements on the Greenbelt.  The Agency has an agreement for 
the improvements on the River Gardens project but not for the $400,000 commitment.  She asked for 
authorization for Elam and Burke to prepare the documents.  

Radford asked for clarification on the project.  Magee responded the agreement would be for those 
improvements north of Broadway and south of John’s Hole for which the Parks and Recreation Division 
has received a grant.  In response to a question from Radford, Magee said the construction is to begin in 
2015. Thompson moved to authorize Elam and Burke to prepare an agreement with the City of 
Idaho Falls for Greenbelt improvements north of Broadway. Terri Gazdik seconds motion, and it 
passed unanimously. 

Introduction of Kristine Staten, Idaho Falls Downtown Development Corporation (IFDDC):  
Kristine Staten introduced herself.  She has taken the position of Executive Director, Idaho Falls 
Downtown Development Corporation.  IFFDC does have some projects in the downtown they wish to 
bring to the Agency in the future. Her background is in economic development, infrastructure projects, 
grant writing, grant administration, and project management.  She has done projects in Blackfoot, 
Mackay, Custer, Chubbuck, Salmon, and Butte County.  

Annual Meeting of Redevelopment Association of Idaho (RAI), September 18, Boise: Meghan 
Conrad explained RAI will hold its annual meeting on Thursday September 18. A major portion of the 
day will be set aside for legislation development efforts.  The meeting will be a strategy session to 
consider legislation and decide what tasks, if any, RAI wishes to complete this year. The goal is to 
develop a consensus of issues important to member agencies. This is probably the first meeting is a series 
of meetings.  It is a very important meeting and member agencies need to attend. 

Brent Thompson asked where the meeting will be held.  Conrad responded it will be held at the Riverside 
Hotel in Garden City. 

Reschedule Next Meeting: Radford explained the next meeting is scheduled at same time as the annual 
meeting of Redevelopment Association of Idaho (RAI).  Magee explained, if the meeting can be moved to 
September 24, it will also help with the urban renewal district plan since there will be an additional week 
to work on the plan. 

Thompson is available on the 24th; Radford, 24th or preferably the 25th; Gazdik, 24th.  It was decided the 
meeting will be scheduled for Noon on September 24. 



Idaho Falls Redevelopment Agency, August 21, 2014. Page 5 
 

After discussing the need for someone to attend the RAI meeting, Gazdik moved to reimburse Magee 
for expenses in attending the annual meeting of RAI. Thompson seconded the motion, and it passed 
unanimously.  

Radford asked if there were any other items to discuss.  Thompson asked if the Agency has used eminent 
domain or been asked to use eminent domain to acquire property.    Magee responded the Agency has not 
done so or been asked to do it.  The Agency was asked for a letter stating it has the authority but that was 
before the State legislature passed legislation in response to the Kelo v. New London court case.  Magee 
asks Meghan when the Kelo legislation was passed. Conrad replied in 2005. Magee continued the Agency 
was asked to write a letter that said the Agency had the authority because of the taxing implications. 
Conrad explained, if you sell your property under the threat of eminent domain, there may be some 
favorable tax benefits.  Magee replied eminent domain is usually in an urban renewal district plan for 
limited purposes. There were no other comments. 

The meeting adjourned 12:58 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

Becky Thompson 


